
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.  The 
Council will webcast the meeting. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
6 July 2021 

 

Dear Councillor 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Wednesday 14 July 2021  at 7.30 pm in Roller City, Campus 
West, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6BX. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 May 2021 
(previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 
 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 

Public Document Pack



 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 
The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE CABINET  
 

 To consider recommendations from the meetings of the Cabinet on 13 July 
2021. 
 

(a)    Proposal to purchase 38 flats via the Affordable Housing Programme 

(Pages 7 - 12) 
 

9.   NOTICES OF MOTIONS (Pages 13 - 14) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

10.   APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Pages 15 - 18) 
 

 Report of the Human Resources Manager to seek the Council’s ratification of the 
recommendation from the appointments panel regarding the appointment of the 
Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service, following the conclusion of the 
recruitment process. 
 

11.   THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING ORDERS) (ENGLAND) 
REGULATIONS 2001 (Pages 19 - 22) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
on the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001, that 
required changes to the Council’s Constitution to reflect the revised statutory 
process for dismissal of statutory officers. 
 

12.   COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 2021/22 (Pages 23 - 26) 
 

 To approve the appointments to Committees. 
 



13.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 14 JULY 2021 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY 
MEMBERS  
 

Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Paul Zukowskyj 
 

“With the recent announcements of bank closures, Hatfield Town Centre may 
well have just one high street bank left trading. What steps has the council taken 
to encourage the closing banks to stay open and continue providing banking 
services to our residents?” 

 
2. Question to the Leader from Councillor Max Holloway 
 

“This Council’s contracted out services have been using glyphosate as a 
weedkiller around street furniture, people’s homes and even children’s play 
areas.  This saves time when grass cuts take place on difficult to reach areas.   

Does the leader share my concerns that glyphosate has been described by the 
World Health Organisation as a 'possible human carcinogen' and the evidence 
pointing to its hazardous properties to people, pets and the wildlife is growing – 
will they commit to reviewing this practice?” 

3. Question to the Leader from Councillor Frank Marsh 

“There are increasing numbers of occurrences of Welwyn Hatfield Borough 
Council’s planning officers producing recommendations on applications that run 
counter to published policies, whether on parking standards, size and tenure of 
homes or heights.  In a town founded on having comprehensive planning policies 
and garden city principles; how and why has this been allowed to happen?” 

4. Question to the Leader from Councillor Margaret Birleson 
 

“The pandemic has had a severe impact on many of our residents’ financial 
position with many families on the cliff-edge of becoming homeless.  The so 
called “evictions ban” ended in May, but the restrictions on employment caused 
by the pandemic did not.  

Can the leader or relevant cabinet member therefore update the Council on the 
figures of this Councils use of Bailiffs this calendar year and any other relevant 
detail on the impact to residents affected?” 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Harvinder Sarohi - Parhar 
Executive Member: Cllr Fiona Thomson  
Ward: Hatfield Central  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 14 JULY 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 

TURNKEY HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ARRANGEMENT WITH LOVELLS 
PARTNERSHIP LTD FOR THE PURCHASE OF 38 UNITS AT BLOCK 1, 1-9 TOWN 
CENTRE HATFIELD AL10 0JZ  

1. Executive Summary  

1.1 In February 2021 the council commenced discussions regarding an opportunity to 
enter into a turnkey agreement to purchase 38 completed apartments at 1-9 Town 
Centre Hatfield AL10 0JZ A turnkey agreement is where the units are already 
designed, constructed and ready for occupation on a fixed date and at an agreed 
price. 

1.2 The land, which is owned by the Council, forms part of the Council’s regeneration 
plans for Hatfield Town Centre. Block 1 is part of a development which would 
comprise three residential blocks with Block 1 being the largest block. The 
Council’s Estates and Development Team have, through the Council’s 
procurement process, entered into a Development Agreement with Lovells 
Partnerships Ltd to develop the site. 

1.3 Planning approval has been achieved at 1 -9 Town Centre for the development of 
71 residential units, 25% of which are required to be affordable in line with the 
council’s policy, including associated retail accommodation on the ground floor. 

1.4 Resolution to grant has been approved by Development Management Committee, 
subject to S106 contributions, for 80 units at Link Drive, Hatfield, as part of Hatfield 
Town Centre Regeneration, 25% of which are required to be affordable in line with 
council’s policy. The S106 is expected to be signed in the coming month. 

1.5 Lovells Partnerships Ltd has been selected by the Council (landowner) to develop 
the scheme. Lovells Partnership Ltd will sign a Development Agreement which 
allows construction of the scheme and the sale of the completed units once full 
planning consent is received.  

1.6 A total of 38 units would be allocated for affordable housing across both sites. 
However, for ease of management and subject to planning approval, it has been 
agreed with Lovells Partnerships Ltd that all the affordable units could be located 
at Block 1, 1-9 Town Centre. 

1.7 The proposed new development of Block 1 comprises a mixed block of 15 x one 
bedroom and 23 x 2-bedroom apartments. The 38 residential units will be located 
on floors 1 to 5. 

1.8 The anticipated start on site is August 2021 and the completion of the development 
is February 2023. Once the development is on site Lovells Partnership Ltd will 
consider the opportunities for a phased handover of Block 1 (this is subject to 
negotiation as phasing is not a requirement of the Development Agreement). The 
Development Agreement in place with the Council requires that the commercial 
units are completed prior to the residential units.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 8a



- 2 - 

2 Recommendations  

2.1 That Council approve a Housing Revenue Account capital budget of £3.383m for 
2021/22 funded from an increase in the borrowing requirement.  

3 Explanation  

3.1 In December 2012, Cabinet agreed a range of methods to deliver the council’s 
Affordable Housing Programme. This includes property acquisition, including 
potentially, the option of a joint venture arrangement. 

3.2 The Housing and Communities Team have commenced discussions with Lovells 
Partnerships Ltd regarding an option to increase our affordable homes delivery 
through purchase of the units at Block 1, 1 to 9 Town Centre, Hatfield. Lovells 
Partnerships Ltd have a long-term proven track record of working on similar 
arrangements with local authorities across the country and are a housing delivery 
strategic partner of Housing Associations in the southeast. 

3.3 Lovells Partnerships Ltd will be pursuing the following approvals prior to the 
Council finalising and entering into contract / agreement with Lovells Partnerships 
Ltd, including an undertaking under Section 111 Local Government Act 1972, and 
a determination of an application under Section 73 Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990. These cover items such as the allocation of affordable units in one block, 
along with possible changes that have been proposed by the contractor such as 
changes to balconies, heating, ventilation, and other matters. 

3.4 Subject to a suitable agreement being reached, including achieving planning 
approval as set out in Paragraph 3.3, it is envisaged that Block 1 would be 
purchased via the Affordable Homes Programme and that the properties will be 
held in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

3.5 This acquisition would provide additional properties to the council’s social housing 
stock and provide additional affordable housing to meet local housing need.  

3.6 The initial financial appraisals and assessment of build costs indicate that this 
scheme will be financially viable. A purchase price of £6.505 million has been 
negotiated for the completed units. Financial transactions and milestones will be 
included in the Heads of Terms and are under further negotiation. 

3.7 Valuations and milestones will align with the construction programme, an 
Employers Agent will act on behalf of the Housing and Communities team to verify 
all valuations. Heads of Terms will include a maximum amount to be paid at each 
milestone. Lovells Partnerships Ltd have agreed that if full work has not been 
completed in the necessary financial milestone time frame, a calculated and 
reasonable sum will be paid, this will be overseen by the Council’s Development 
Manager and the instructed Employers Agent.  

3.8 Lovells Partnerships Ltd is a multi-national house builder contractor and developer, 
one of their key areas of activity is regeneration, they have completed many 
successful projects with councils across the UK 

3.9 Lovells Partnerships Limited are committed to improving green technologies, 
which aligns with our Climate Change commitments; Social value is a high priority 
on Lovells Partnerships Ltd agenda; they support residents through job 
opportunities. 

3.10 The Council has purchased considerable numbers of homes on the open market 
and this potential development provides the opportunity to acquire new properties 

Page 8



- 3 - 

at scale. The council would obtain 23 two bed apartments and 15 one bed 
apartments which are in high demand. 

3.11 The Council will have a development agreement with Lovells for this site, with the 
primary aim of regenerating the area through a mix of new commercial and 
residential units. The proposals set out in this report give the council the 
opportunity to increase its social housing stock and provide high quality homes for 
local people in housing need 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Any proposed Turnkey agreement is subject to contract and agreement regarding 
an acceptable offer to the parties. Internal legal advice will be provided to the 
Council. Further investigation and due diligence would be required in relation to 
redesign of internal spaces and specifications. These are now underway through 
joint design meetings with the councils’ Development Manager and the architects 
representing Lovells Partnerships Ltd 

4.2 Lovells Partnerships Ltd would be required to obtain approval under Section 73 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and an undertaking under Section 111 Local 
Government Act 1972 prior to entering into contract. 

4.3 Until a proposed sale has been agreed and completed, the council will not be 
responsible for Block 1, including arrangement of suitable insurance 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The proposed price is financially viable based on detailed financial appraisals 
using the council’s appraisal toolkit. Based on the modelling, the scheme has a 
payback period of 45 years (as a standalone scheme). The council maintains a 30 
year business plan model, to support longer term financial planning, but it is not a 
requirement for schemes to be repaid within 30 years, as long as the scheme is 
viable over the life of the asset. The 45 year payback period is still considered to 
be a reasonable payback period for social housing, and is significantly lower than 
the life of the asset. 

5.2 Receipts generated more broadly in the Housing Revenue Account will enable 
significantly earlier repayment of the borrowing associated with this scheme.  

5.3 Based on a 60-year Net Present Value (NPV) calculation, excluding the residual 
value of the asset, the scheme has a negative value of around £670k. Taking into 
account the residual value of the asset, the scheme would have a positive net 
present value.  

5.4 The proposed arrangement would be on a fixed price basis (subject to planning 
approvals), reducing the risk to the Council, and form part of a legal development 
agreement. Payments would only be made against milestones agreed.  

5.5 Subject to Council approval, the budget for 2021/22 will be increased by £3.383m 
funded by an increase to the HRA borrowing requirement. Interest costs for the 
year can be managed within existing revenue budgets, and ongoing interest and 
principle repayments have been demonstrated as affordable though the financial 
modelling undertaken. The remaining budget requirement for the scheme will be 
incorporated as part of the 2022/23 budget setting process.  

  

Page 9



- 4 - 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 Reputational and customer risk: The development has achieved planning 
approval; consultation has been completed on the existing designs. The proposed 
purchase would be subject to achieving amendments under Section 73. The 

Council and Lovells Partnerships Ltd have considered potential options for internal 
redesigns which would improve the offer and would be affordable within the project 
budget, Positive preliminary discussions have been held with Planning Officers 
regarding this. Likelihood Low; Impact Medium. Overall risk Low 

6.3 Fire risk: With any block of apartments there is a risk of fire. A fire strategy, 
compliance and fire risk assessments will be produced and agreed by the Council 
prior to the build. This will include updated fire and building regulations as agreed 
by Government. The development will include fire resistant approved materials, 
heat and smoke alarms, sprinklers, while the communal areas will have fire exit 
signs and automatic opening smoke vents. Likelihood Very Low Impact High; 
overall risk Low. 

6.4 Delays due to Covid 19: It is possible a local covid spike could cause delays in 
completion of the development. The contractual arrangements and fixed price 
would mitigate this risk for the council.  Likelihood Medium. Impact Low Overall 
Risk Low 

6.5 Delays due to Covid 19: It is possible a local covid spike could cause delays in 
completion of the development. The contractual arrangements and fixed price 
would mitigate this risk for the council.  Likelihood Medium. Impact Low Overall 
Risk Low 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 Not applicable  

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 Lovells Partnerships Ltd have secured the contract through a tender process, and 
on that basis where awarded the contract by the Council. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The development has been designed to generate a total reduction in energy of 
10.13% over the Target Emissions Rate in Part L Building Regulations 2013. We 
aim to enhance this offer of increasing the total reduction in energy exceeding 
national targets, this will be subject to and incorporated in the financial viability of 
the project. Likelihood Low, Impact Low Overall Risk Low  

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The project will be managed within existing resources within the affordable housing 
team; once within the housing stock, the properties would be managed by existing 
staff.  

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 As there are proven links between poor quality accommodation and both physical 
and mental poor health, there should be improved wellbeing for those rehoused.  

Page 10



- 5 - 

11.2 We would only endeavour to make positive changes to the present design to 
enhance health and wellbeing of our residents.  

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 Subject to agreement between the parties, a communication plan will be agreed. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Strategic Objective – 
Quality Homes through managed growth and specifically to the achievement of 
offering early intervention and help to anyone at risk of homelessness through our 
Housing Options service and is linked to a statutory requirement, under Homeless 
Reduction Act 2018 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was not completed because this report does not 
propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new 
service-related policies. 

 
 
Name of author Harvinder Sarohi Parhar  
Title Housing Development & Strategy Services Manager  
Date 15 June 2021  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No: 9 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 14 July 2021 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Paul Zukowskyj 

and will be seconded by Councillor Frank Marsh:- 

This council notes the Planning Inspectorate appeal decision to grant planning 
permission for 100 homes on green belt land at Bullens Green Lane. 

This council believes this sets a very dangerous precedent for land speculators 
to build anywhere on our green belt, entirely ignoring our emerging local plan. 

This council further believes such development will be massively damaging to 
our communities and must be challenged robustly. 

This council therefore commits to legally challenging the decision at every 
possible opportunity. 

2. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Kieran Thorpe and 
will be seconded by Councillor Glyn Hayes:- 

This Council notes the growing concerns within our community about the lack of 
GP provision in Welwyn Hatfield. 

We further recognise the huge amount of new residential development both 
underway and proposed, and also the further growth mandated by government 
targets that will be delivered through the new Local Plan.    

This Council believes that this growth reinforces the need for better local 
infrastructure to accommodate it and specifically the need for new, additional GP 
provision in Welwyn Hatfield. 

This Council resolves to write to the local MP, County Council leader and chair 
of the East and North Hertfordshire CCG to call for urgent multi-agency action to 
deliver this provision.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Janet Pilbeam 
Executive Member: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 14 JULY 2021 
REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER 

APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE (HEAD OF PAID SERVICE) 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report seeks the Council’s ratification of the recommendation from the 
appointments panel regarding the appointment of the Chief Executive and Head 
of Paid Service, following the conclusion of the recruitment process. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Council ratifies the recommendation of the Officer Appointment Panel that 
Ka Ng be offered the role of Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service. 

2.2 That delegated responsibility be given to the Human Resources Manager, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to finalise the arrangements for this 
appointment. 

2.3 That the Head of Resources continue as interim Chief Finance Officer, as defined 
by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, for a further period of up to 12 
months.  

2.4 That the Service Manager (Financial Services) continue as interim Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer for a further period of up to twelve months, commensurate with the 
term referred to at 2.3 above.  

3 Explanation 

3.1 The Officer Appointment Panel (the Panel) has delegated responsibility to 
undertake the recruitment and selection process for the Chief Executive and Head 
of Paid Service and to make a recommendation on the appointment, to the Council 
at the end of the process. 

3.2 The Panel comprised of the Leader of the Council, all Members of the Cabinet, the 
Leaders of the opposition Groups and an independent consultant.  The Human 
Resources Manager advised the committee. 

3.3 The external recruitment campaign attracted five applications and two candidates 
were shortlisted. 

3.4 Candidates undertook an assessment, presentation, and formal interview. 
Following the conclusion of all the interviews, the Panel gave full consideration to 
all the candidates and unanimously agreed to recommend that Ka Ng be appointed 
to the role. 

3.5 Under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as 
amended), in relation to the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, all executive 
members of the Council must be given an opportunity to object to the proposed 
recommendation for the appointment.  In this case all executive members were 
involved in the appointment and were unanimous in agreeing to the 
recommendation.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

3.6 In accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Council must 
make the actual appointment of the Head of Paid Service. 

3.7 In accordance with the council’s Constitution, this role is also the Electoral 
Registration Officer and Returning Officer in respect of electoral matters, including 
the conduct of elections. 

3.8 As reported in September 2020, the Head of Resources was appointed as Chief 
Finance Officer as defined by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, on 
an interim basis; the Head of Paid Service cannot also hold the role of Chief 
Finance Officer within the council.  The Service Manager (Financial Services) was 
also appointed as Deputy Finance Officer.  It is proposed that these appointments 
continue for a period of up to twelve months, during which time a further report will 
be presented.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Pursuant to section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Council 
is required to approve the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, following the 
recommendation of the Panel. 

4.2 Where the council operates under a leader/executive model form of governance, 
the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as 
amended), in relation to the appointment of the Head of Paid Service, require that 
all executive members of the Council must be given an opportunity to object to the 
proposed recommendation for the appointment.  In this case, all executive 
members were involved in the appointment and were unanimous in agreeing to 
the recommendation.  

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There are no additional costs arising from the appointments process. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no inherent risks in this report. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications inherent in this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications in this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications in this report. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The Human Resource implications are contained in the body of this report. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no health & wellbeing implications associated with this report. 

  

Page 16



- 3 - 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 A press release will be published confirming the appointment. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority of a ‘Well-run 
Council which puts our customers first’. It is also a statutory requirement under 
stated legislation in this report for Council to approve the appointment. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1   An Equality Impact Assessment was not completed because this report does not 
propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new 
service-related policies. 
 

Name of author Janet Pilbeam, ext 2307 
Title Human Resources Manager 
Date 29 June 2021 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Janet Pilbeam 
Executive Member: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 14 JULY 2021 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 
GOVERNANCE) 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING ORDERS) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2001  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 
2015 made amendments to the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
Regulations 2001, that required changes to the Council’s Constitution to reflect the 
revised statutory process for dismissal of statutory officers. 

1.2 Council on 20 July 2015, agreed changes to the council’s Constitution, to comply 
with the statutory requirements and ensure the necessary arrangements were in 
place for this process.  

1.3 In particular, Council agreed to the establishment of a committee, the Statutory 
Officers’ Disciplinary Panel. The committee was established as a standing 
committee for the purposes of advising Council on matters relating to the dismissal 
of the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer. 
This Committee also has the power to determine, following an investigation, any 
sanctions to be applied to those Officers, short of dismissal. 

1.4 A recent circular from the national Joint Negotiating Committee for Chief 
Executives of local authorities (JNC) requires that further changes are made to the 
council’s existing arrangements. The JNC has agreed a model procedure to reflect 
the amended regulations, and this has been incorporated into the nationally 
agreed contractual conditions of service handbook for local authority Chief 
Executives. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That in accordance with the agreed JNC model procedures, Council agrees that 
the existing Statutory Officers’ Disciplinary Panel is replaced with an Investigating 
and Disciplinary Committee, the membership and terms of reference as are set 
out at paragraphs 3.3 to 3.6 of this report. 

2.2 That Council also agrees to the establishment of an Appeals Committee and 
Independent Panel, the membership and terms of reference as are set out at 
paragraphs 3.7 to 3.12 of this report. 

2.3 That the Monitoring Officer is authorised to make any necessary and 
consequential constitutional changes arising from the recommendations. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The JNC has agreed a model procedure to reflect the amended regulations, and 
this has been incorporated into the nationally agreed contractual conditions of 
service handbook for local authority Chief Executives.  Whilst the JNC Conditions 
of Service are incorporated in all the statutory officers’ contracts of employment, 
the model procedure needs to be adopted by full Council to ensure that the council 

Page 19

Agenda Item 11



- 2 - 

does not breach contractual conditions of employment in the event that disciplinary 
action is contemplated or pursued against a statutory officer. 

3.2 The procedure involves four stages: an Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 
(IDC), an Appeals Committee, an Independent Panel and the Council.  

3.3 Investigating and Disciplinary Committee (IDC)- Where an allegation or 
complaint is made relating to the conduct or capability of the Chief Executive, 
Section 151 Officer or Monitoring Officer (Statutory Officers) the matter will be 
considered by the IDC.  

3.4 This is a committee that will be established for the purposes of advising Council 
on matters relating to the dismissal of the Head of Paid Service, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Chief Finance Officer. This Committee will also have the power to 
determine, following an investigation, any sanctions to be applied to those 
Statutory Officers, short of dismissal. 

3. 5 The IDC will be politically balanced and comprise of five members, at least one of 
whom will be a member of the Executive.  Arrangements for flexibility will be 
required, including the use of reserve members or substitutes, in the event that a 
member of the IDC has a conflict of interest in the matter to be considered.  If the 
IDC is of the view that a complaint or allegation should be progressed, it will 
appoint an independent investigator from a list held by the Joint National Council.  

3.6 The terms of reference for the IDC are proposed as: 

 To determine the procedure to be followed by the IDC. 

 To receive, assess and consider any complaint or allegation relating to a 
Statutory Officer. 

 To appoint and receive reports from an independent investigator as 
appropriate. 

 To receive reports and advice from the Independent Panel in the event 
dismissal of a Statutory Officer is being considered. 

 To determine and issue sanctions short of dismissal for a Statutory Officer. 

 Subject to receiving advice from the Independent Panel, to make any 
recommendations to Council for the dismissal of a Statutory Officer. 

3.7   Appeal Committee (AC) This is a committee that will be established for the 
purposes of considering any appeals on sanctions by the IDC against a Statutory 
Officer.  For Statutory Officers, all sanctions short of dismissal may be applied by 
the IDC. 

3.8 The Appeals Committee will be politically balanced and comprise of five members, 
at least one of whom will be a member of the Executive.  It will hear appeals against 
sanctions decided by the IDC  (short of dismissal for Statutory Officers).  

3.9 The terms of reference for the AC are proposed as: 

 To determine the procedure to be followed by the AC. 

 To receive, assess and consider any appeal by a Statutory Officer in respect 
of a sanction applied by the IDC. 

 To consider any appropriate and relevant reports and submissions to the 
matter. 

 To decide either to confirm the sanction applied by the IDC, impose no 
sanction or apply a lesser sanction.  

Page 20



- 3 - 

3.10  The Independent Panel (IP) - The Independent Panel comprises at least two 
independent persons who are appointed by the Council or another council, for the 
purposes of the council members’ conduct regime under section 28(7) of the 
Localism Act 2011. The Monitoring Officer may also appoint an Independent 
Person(s) from a list held by the Joint National Council. 

3.11 The Independent Panel is only used if the IDC, having received the report of the 
independent investigator and having held a hearing, is minded to recommend 
dismissal of a Statutory Officer to full Council.  If the recommendation is for a lesser 
sanction such as a written warning, the IDC has the power to impose this without 
referring to either the Independent Panel or full Council.  The relevant officer can 
then appeal the sanction to the Appeals Committee. 

3.12 If the IDC recommendation is dismissal of a Statutory Officer, the Cabinet will also 
be given the opportunity to make any objections to the recommendation by the 
IDC.  Following this, the Independent Panel will hold a hearing where it will listen 
to the case put by both the chairperson of the IDC and the relevant officer and will 
then give their advice / views / recommendations to Council. 

3.13 The matter then goes to full Council for a decision.  This is in effect an appeal 
hearing for the relevant statutory officer who can put their case to Council before 
a decision is taken. In reaching its decision, Council must take into account the 
views of the Independent Panel. 

 Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Various legal provisions are referenced in the main body of the report. The Local 
Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2015 made 
amendments to the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 
2001 (the 2001 Regulations) that changed the statutory process for dismissal of 
Statutory Officers. The 2001 Regulations (as amended) requires the incorporation 
of specific standing orders relating to local authority employees. 

4.2 The standard contract of employment for the relevant officers refers to the JNC 
agreed conditions of service handbook for local authority Chief Executives.  A 
failure to implement a disciplinary procedure based on the model could be a breach 
of contract. 

4.3 A member who has made the complaint or allegation against the relevant officer, 
would not be able to serve on the IDC or Appeals Committee considering that 
complaint due to the common law rules of bias. 

4.4 Under Section 102(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, a local authority may 
appoint committees for the discharge of any of its functions. 

4.5 Under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, it is highly likely that the 
relevant committees will be required to resolve to exclude the public and press, on 
the basis that confidential and/or exempt information would be considered. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 There would be costs associated with the process if initiated but there are no 
financial implications at this stage. 

5.2 There are increased financial risks associated with tribunals if the council fails to 
follow its policies and procedures adequately.  

Page 21



- 4 - 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The process outlined in this report and recommended for adoption are compliant 
with the 2001 and 2015 Regulations and nationally agreed Joint Negotiating 
Committee for Local Authority Chief Executives and is being applied to the two 
other relevant statutory officers protected by the 2015 Regulations.  This mitigates 
any risk to the council in this regard. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications inherent in this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications in this report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications in this report. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The relevant officers will be consulted about the changes in procedure outlined in 
this report.  The Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer have 
contracts of employment which refer to the JNC terms and conditions of service.  
Failure to progress disciplinary action against a statutory officer in accordance with 
a procedure based on the nationally agreed JNC terms and conditions of service 
could constitute a breach of employment contract. 

10.2 The officer disciplinary policy and procedure covers all employees, except for 
Statutory Officers however, an officer’s position in the hierarchy may require a 
Member committee to be involved in hearings and appeals (IDC and AC), at the 
discretion of the HR Manager / Monitoring Officer. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no health & wellbeing implications associated with this report. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 There are no communication or engagement implications in this report. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is not linked to a council Corporate Priority but is a 
statutory requirement under The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
Regulations 2001 (as amended). 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1   An Equalities Impact Assessment was not completed because this report does not 
propose changes to existing service-related policies or the development of new 
service-related policies. 
 

 
Name of author Janet Pilbeam, ext 2307 
Title Human Resources Manager 
Date 2 July 2021 
 

Page 22



NON-EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES 2021/22 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Note: Proposed appointment of additional Vice-Chair is highlighted below) 
 

Constitution: 13 Members 
Ratio 8:3:2 
 

Conservative Liberal Democrat and 
Independent 

Labour  

Barbara Fitzsimon C Helen Quenet VC Lynn Chesterman VC 

Alistair Hellyer Siobhan Elam Glyn Hayes 

Samuel Kasumu Frank Marsh  

George Michaelides   

Paul Smith   

Craig Stanbury   

Teresa Travell   

Roger Trigg   

 
Co-opted Members: 
Tenants Panel Representatives 
 

Chris Andrews 

 
 
Investigating and Disciplinary Committee 
 

Constitution: 5 Members (including at least one Executive Member) 
Ratio 3:1:1 
 

Conservative Liberal Democrat and 
Independent 

Labour  

Duncan Bell C Paul Zukowskyj Kieran Thorpe 

Julie Cragg   

Paul Smith   

 
 
Appeal Committee 
 

Constitution: 5 Members (including at least one Executive Member) 
Ratio 3:1:1 
 

Conservative  Liberal Democrat and 
Independent 

Labour  

Stephen Boulton C Jane Quinton Glyn Hayes 

George Michaelides   

Drew Richardson   

 
 
Independent Panel 
 

Constitution: 2 Independent Members to be determined by the Monitoring Officer as 
appropriate 

Page 23

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Item No:  
For Decision 

 
 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 14 JULY 2021  
 
Recommendation from Constitution Review Group on 29 June 2021:-  
  

6. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: VICE-CHAIR 
 
Members discussed the benefits of having two Vice Chairs of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That an additional Vice Chair would be nominated and put forward for 
agreement at the next Council meeting. That each year, prior to the committee 
nominations being submitted to Annual Council, Group leaders would agree on 
the number of Vice Chairs for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8a Proposal to purchase 38 flats via the Affordable Housing Programme
	9 NOTICES OF MOTIONS
	10 APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE
	11 THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (STANDING ORDERS) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2001
	12 COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 2021/22
	12a - Extracted Minute from Constitution Review Group - 29 June 2021


